
 
 

Park County Commission Meeting Minutes 
Week of October 10 – 14, 2011 

Park County, Montana 
 

 
 
October 10, 2011 
 
Columbus Day Holiday – All Offices Closed 
 
October 11, 2011 
 
7:30 A.M. – Job Service Employers Council – Livingston, Job Service – Commissioner 
Malone attended 
 
October 11, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@8:36:50 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Raea Morris, administrative assistant; Brett Linneweber, county attorney; and Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo email re. Cooke City emergency operations building status 
• Memo email re. MACo mill levy delays 
• Memo document re. YGM Board member resignation 
• Memo document re. Data Imaging Systems invoice 
• Memo email re. October 17 Tax Appeal Board schedule 
• Memo email re. bovine nutritional management 
• Memo email re. Oct 11 Web Committee meeting 
• Memo email re. Nov 14 Bell and Associates meeting 
• Memo email re. CountySilo scanner installation and payments 
• Memo email re. Arbor Drive status 
• Memo document re. Fair Board application 
• Memo email re. Oct 17 EA bison relocation meeting 
• Memo document re. refuse re-assessment request 
• Memo email re. Oct 20 planning board agenda 
• Memo document re. Fair Board application 

 
Commissioner Malone reported on an October 7 meeting in Cooke City. 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 1 of 18 



 
@9:02:45 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 11, 2011 
County Road Updates/Engineering Services Updates 
 
@9:14:34 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present was 
Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss county road issues and update engineering 
services. 
 
Commissioner Malone said he hired Chad Standish at $85 per hour to grade and roll Pray 
Road on October 10 as a trial effort, and the entire road was done well and completed in 
four hours.  Commissioner Durgan said he may request a similar trial with Standish on 
Old Yellowstone Trail. 
 
The Commission discussed hiring a consultant to assist the road supervisor with 
management skills. 
 
@9:26:06 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 11, 2011 
Discussion/Decision on Agenda for Planning and Development Board Meetings 
 
@10:33:47 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Mike Inman and Jeri Stevens, planning; Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; 
Jill Ouellette, HR; Dale Reinhart and Bill Berg, planning board; Philip Fletcher, 
community development; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider a decision on the process to develop Planning and 
Development Board meeting agendas. 
 
There was discussion about the process by which the Planning and Development Board 
agenda will be created each month.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone said they think 
it is unfair for board chairman Dale Reinhart to spend hours putting together the agenda.  
There was consensus the community development department will submit meeting 
agenda items to the planning department, which will present a draft agenda with 
community development and planning department meeting items to all parties for 
comment 15 days in advance of the meeting.  The planning department will finalize the 
meeting agenda with any comments received from the board chair and vice-chair and 
send out meeting packets 10 days in advance of the meeting. 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 2 of 18 



 
Reinhart said the October board agenda will not include a planning board training, will 
include revision of bylaws, Inman’s department updates and a community development 
workshop. 
 
@11:23:21 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 11, 2011 
Award Bids for Gardiner Sidewalk Project 
 
@11:24:44 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Philip Fletcher, community development; 
and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to award bids for the Gardiner Sidewalk Project. 
 
Civil Deputy County Attorney Shannan Piccolo said Great West Engineering reviewed 
two bids for the Gardiner Sidewalk Project and sent them to her for legal review.  Piccolo 
said Great West said Knife River was the lowest responsive bidder.   
 
Commissioner Malone moved to award the contract to Knife River.  Commissioner 
Durgan seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
Philip Fletcher, community development, said a group of residents in Gardiner expressed 
concerns about a one-way street as proposed with the sidewalk project.  He said he 
submitted a memorandum to the citizens notifying them the construction will go ahead.  
 
@11:29:56 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 11, 2011 
Review of Minutes for the Week of October 3, 2011 
 
@11:43:36 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present was 
Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review Commission meeting minutes for the Week 
October 3, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Durgan moved to recess until 3:00 p.m.  Commissioner Malone seconded 
the motion.  Motion passed. 
 
@11:43:51 a.m., the meeting recessed. @3:16:28 p.m., the meeting reopened. 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 3 of 18 



 
Commissioner Durgan requested a revision to Page 11 of 12; second paragraph, the third 
sentence should read, “In discussion, Durgan clarified the pay scales will be in effect for 
Fiscal Years 2012 and 2013.”   
 
Commissioner Malone moved to accept the minutes as corrected.  Commissioner Durgan 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@3:18:11 p.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 11, 2011 
 
1:00 P.M. – Senior Citizens Meeting – Livingston, Senior Center – Commissioner Taylor 
attended 
 
October 11, 2011 
 
2:00 P.M. – IT Advisory Committee – Community Room 
 
October 11, 2011 
Human Resources Updates 
 
@3:30:49 p.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Jill Ouellette, HR; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss activities in the Human Resources Department. 
 
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette provided the Commission with change of status 
forms for a short term worker in the road department and a seasonal landfill scale house 
operator.  Ouellette said the county can expect a bill for an employee who was mis-
categorized for PERS benefits back in 1986, which may amount to $20,000+.  She 
provided the Commission with a report of activities and hours worked by the HR 
assistant. 
 
The Commission authorized Ouellette to talk with an individual charging $100 per hour 
to conduct an employee complaint investigation. 
 
@3:45:00 p.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 11, 2011 
Personnel Meeting 
 
@4:04:46 p.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 4 of 18 



Mike Inman, planning; Jill Ouellette, HR; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public 
comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to address a personnel issue. 
 
Senior Planner Mike Inman requested the meeting be closed to the public. 
 
Commissioner Malone moved to close the meeting.  Commissioner Durgan seconded the 
motion.  The meeting closed to the public, the audio recording was turned off and the 
recording secretary exited the chambers. 
 
@5:00 p.m., the meeting adjourned. 
 
October 11, 2011 
 
5:30 P.M. – Board of Health – East Room – Meeting minutes available in the Environmental 
Health Department 
 
October 12, 2011 
Daily Correspondence/Agenda and Briefing on Current County Projects 
 
@8:36:18 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Raea Morris, administrative assistant; Ed Meece, city manager; and Minutes Clerk John 
Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo email re. Beartooth Highway construction project 
• Memo email re. Disability Rights Montana accessibility surveys 
• Memo email re. Rock Creek Road work estimate 
• Memo email re. MSU Extension economic development interviews 
• Memo email re. weed trainings 
• Memo email re. community development director out of office schedule  

 
@8:50:00 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 12, 2011 
Decision on Stipulation for Montana Gift Cabin v. Park County Board of Health 
 
@9:08:52 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 5 of 18 



Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Wes Venteicher, Livingston Enterprise; 
and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider a decision on a stipulation for Montana Gift 
Cabin v. Park County Board of Health. 
 
Civil Deputy County Attorney Shannan Piccolo said an attorney for the owners of 
Montana Gift Cabin proposed a lawsuit settlement regarding appeal of a Board of Health 
decision in which the owners would drop the appeal if the county granted them one year 
to hook their business to the city of Livingston sewer system.  Piccolo said the Board of 
Health voted on October 11 to recommend the Commission accept the settlement offer.   
 
Commissioner Malone moved to accept the stipulations for the Montana Gift Cabin v. 
Park County Board of Health as recommended by the civil attorney and Board of Health.  
Commissioner Durgan seconded the motion.  Motion passed.   
 
@9:11:14 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 12, 2011 
Decision on Parks and Recreation Board Bylaws and Current Status of the Board 
 
@9:33:59 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Martha Miller, auditor; Phil Dawson, parks board; Philip Fletcher, community 
development; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider a decision on Parks and Recreation Board bylaws 
and the current status of the board. 
 
Philip Fletcher, community development, said the county stopped advertising for Parks 
Board applications in June when questions came up about the board’s status.  He said two 
applications were submitted in June for four positions.  
 
Commissioner Malone said the resolution creating the Parks Board has some issues that 
are inaccurate.  The Commission said it would like to revisit the resolution that created 
the board.  Malone said he thinks the term “recreation” should be removed from the Parks 
Board title, but historic preservation should be included as part of the board’s 
responsibilities.  
 
The Commission reviewed and made changes to parks board bylaw changes as proposed 
by Fletcher.  Commissioner Durgan said he does not agree with the Parks Board 
administering Yellowstone River Ranch Estates funds.  Commissioner Taylor asked 
Fletcher to assemble all comments made in the meeting and provide a draft to the 
Commission.  
 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 6 of 18 



@10:41:36 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 12, 2011 
Decision on Work Plans for Planning Department 
 
@10:47:24 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Mike Inman and Jeri Stevens, planning; Jill Ouellette, HR; Martha Miller, auditor; Dann 
Babcox, PCRFD#1; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider a decision on a work plan for the Planning 
Department. 
 
Commissioner Taylor said job descriptions and the budget for planning department 
personnel will be revised to reflect the separation of the planning and community 
development departments.  He said his first concern is ensuring required work is 
completed as assigned to the planning department.  Commissioner Malone said he 
perceives the planning department will regularly report to the Commission on its status of 
work efforts just as the road and human resources departments do. 
 
Taylor said the Commission assigned duties to planning department personnel in a 
previous public meeting.  He said duties assigned to the planning department included 
subdivision review, zoning administration, floodplain administration and code 
enforcement.   
 
Growth Policy: Taylor said growth policy administration presents a difficult decision.  He 
said the Commission does not want long-range planning work done on the growth policy, 
but wants the growth policy to reflect current legislation.  He said minor required 
updating of the growth policy will fall to Inman to do.  Commissioner Durgan said the 
planning board likes to be aware of long-term effects issues might have on the county and 
the growth policy and thinks Inman is in the position to keep the board abreast of such 
issues.  He said such is the job of a planner.  Inman said state statute mandates the growth 
policy is updated every five years and the county’s growth policy has timelines by which 
various entities are to update the policy.  He said changes to the policy must be open to 
the public participation and comment process through the planning board, which likely 
will change plan goals and objectives, such as adding economic development 
components.  Inman said, additionally, the planning board’s intent is to change the format 
of the county growth policy as a substantial project.  He said the Commission may need 
to address that intent, so he suggests the Commission meet with the community 
development department and the planning board on the issue to avoid problems created 
by past communication gaffs between the board and Commission.  Inman said he thinks 
it would behoove the county to discuss whether it wants to discuss or actually conduct a 
growth policy work session at the October 20 planning board meeting or a later meeting.  
He said he is hearing the Commission wants no long-term activity on the growth policy, 
but the planning board is ready to move forward with modeling the county policy after a 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 7 of 18 



Santa Fe format, which are totally conflicting sentiments.  Taylor said he will attend the 
October 21 meeting to share the Commission’s sentiments about the growth policy and 
decisions in separating the planning and community development departments.   
 
Planning and Development Board Administration/Support: Taylor said the Commission 
decided on duties regarding the planning and development board agenda and support 
efforts at a public meeting on October 11.  Inman said he thinks decisions made will 
work out. 
 
Planning and Zoning: The Commission said planning and zoning responsibilities fall to 
the planning department. 
 
Parks and Recreation: Taylor said he thinks parks and recreation should fall to the 
planning department, but Malone thinks it belongs under economic development.  Taylor 
said he thinks Inman would have a better relationship with some members of the county’s 
historical community than the community development director has.  He said he thinks 
the community development director will have problems as a result of relations and 
therefore it belongs under planning.  Taylor said perhaps the Commission needs to 
separate historical issues from parks and recreation to rectify the aforementioned issue.  
Inman said that may be difficult, because many parks or potential parks in the county 
have historical aspects.  Inman provided the Commission with statutory parameters of 
subdivision parklands or cash-in-lieu of parklands, as well as the requirement the county 
has a board or commission as a jurisdiction to administer and spend any said funds.  He 
said a parks plan is also required and the county has such a plan, and the parks board has 
been working to prioritize potential county park projects.  Malone said parks and 
recreation may be a crossover issue between planning and community development 
departments, but he thinks it belongs in community development.  Taylor said he thinks it 
belongs in Inman’s department.  Durgan said he agrees parks and recreation needs to stay 
in the planning regime at this point. 
 
Hazard Mitigation Planning: Taylor said Inman will undertake efforts associated with 
Wildland Urban Interface planning. 
 
Floodplain Administration: Taylor said Inman will conduct floodplain management with 
Barbara Woodbury, environmental health.  Inman said he and Woodbury will hold a 
meeting with the Commission in short time to present updated county floodplain 
regulations for review and adoption.  
 
Dann Babcox, PCRFD#1, said he thinks code enforcement is a fulltime job and the 
Commission is in danger of setting up Inman or Fletcher to fail with all responsibilities 
required of code enforcement. 
 
Taylor opened the floor to Inman to comment on planning department work plan and 
efforts.  Inman said the planning department is going through general office 
reorganization after the split from the community development department and is 
updating documents, working on a new website and a department work plan will be 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 8 of 18 



developed and provided to the Commission.  He said he cannot put together a work 
program until all duties and logistics associated with the department split are finalized, 
however he will email the Commission current planning department work efforts and 
work plan ideas. 
 
Inman said he recently met with Cooke City zoning committee members about updating 
Cooke City zoning regulations and maps.  He said he hopes to have a draft for review by 
the end of the calendar year with a goal of having updated, amended regulations and 
official, digital maps in GIS format approved by spring 2012. 
 
Inman said updating of donut area zoning regulations is on hold at present due to 
litigation issues. 
  
Jeri Stevens, planning, said she is concerned with apparent planning board member 
perceptions of Inman’s and Stevens’ performance and professional abilities.  Taylor said 
such things will come to light in time through good performance.  
 
@11:39:46 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 12, 2011 
Signing of Resolution to Amend Resolution #887 and Adopt a Revised Hazard 
Mitigation Plan for Park County 
 
@11:42:27 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No 
public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign a resolution to amend Resolution #887 adopting a 
revised hazard mitigation plan for Park County. 
 
Civil Deputy County Attorney Shannan Piccolo said the county is required to update and 
adopt a hazard mitigation plan. 
  
Commissioner Durgan moved to sign Resolution #1118 to amend Resolution #887 and 
adopt a revised hazard mitigation plan for Park County.  Commissioner Malone seconded 
the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@11:43:55 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 9 of 18 



October 12, 2011 
Signing of Resolution to Appoint a Special Deputy Attorney 
 
@11:43:59 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No 
public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign a resolution to appoint a special deputy attorney. 
 
Civil Deputy County Attorney Shannan Piccolo said County Attorney Linneweber 
requested the special deputy attorney, the bill for which will not be paid by Park County. 
 
Commissioner Malone moved to sign Resolution #1119 to appoint a special deputy 
county attorney.  Commissioner Durgan seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 
 
@11:46:28 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 12, 2011 
Consider Decision on Work Plans for Community Development Department 
 
@1:30 p.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners Chambers.  
Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were Ted 
Madden, PCCF; Phil Dawson and Chuck Donovan, citizens; Philip Fletcher, community 
development. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider a decision on a work plan for the Community 
Development Department. 
 
Philip Fletcher said his work in economic development will be greatly reduced in two or 
three months when a regional economic developer will be employed with grant funds 
through a regional Park/Gallatin County RC&D Economic Development District (EDD) 
effort.  Fletcher said he will then focus on local efforts and programs to feed into the 
EDD. 
 
Grant Acquisition and Administration: Commissioner Taylor said Fletcher will do grant 
acquisition and administration work for his department and other county departments.  
Commissioner Malone said his thought is Fletcher would lead the county’s Grants 
Review Committee.   
 
Economic Development Board: Taylor said Fletcher will work on a Comprehensive 
Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) effort. 
 
Review and Respond to EIS Documents: Taylor said Fletcher will work on responding to 
Environmental Impact Statement efforts. 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 10 of 18 



 
Community Technical Assistance: Taylor said Fletcher will provide community technical 
assistance, which includes a transportation plan and coordinating with the National Park 
Service.  Fletcher said some transportation efforts fall under planning, and others will fall 
into a chapter in the county growth policy.  Taylor said the Commission would like 
Fletcher to complete the Gardiner Sidewalk Project.  Fletcher said he is good at working 
with small communities and thinks the county needs to spread his efforts into Clyde Park.  
Taylor said he will inform Wilsall of assistance. 
 
Natural Resources:  Taylor said Fletcher will work to establish and implement goals and 
objectives relevant to natural resources, such as a mineral extraction fracking project.  
Taylor said a Working with People and Wildlife grant will remain with the planning 
department. 
 
Airport Board Support: Fletcher said he can assist with that effort.  Commissioner 
Durgan said the affected area would be a planning function.  Fletcher said the efforts 
should be done together.  Taylor said Fletcher will do the work in assisting the airport 
board. 
 
In other discussion, Malone said Fletcher will work with the Planning and Development 
Board on community development issues.  Fletcher said the role of the county planning 
and development board will be lessened regarding economic development, as four of the 
board members will be members of the regional EDD board.  Malone said his opinion is 
the EDD board will determine what Fletcher will work on regarding economic 
development efforts. 
 
Taylor opened the floor to Fletcher to comment on community development department 
work plans and efforts.  Taylor said Fletcher will continue with the Fleshman Creek 
Project.  Fletcher said he and the accounting director will work on that effort.  He said 
relations with entities promising in-kind contribution to the creek project were destroyed 
over the past year, and such entities informed him they do not want to do any business 
with Park County in the future.  Fletcher asked Durgan if he can help repair the relations 
to assist him in gathering in-kind efforts. 
 
Fletcher said he has ongoing grant projects and activities with parks and recreation 
efforts, and has ongoing grant efforts with Gardiner and Cooke City.  Fletcher said a 
Rivers, Trails and Conservation Assistance Program (RTCA) grant is a two-year grant 
providing the county with technical assistance to identify trail projects.  Fletcher said he 
is working with the RTCA grant individual on a Parks and Recreation Board survey that 
was not completed last year.  Taylor asked Fletcher if the planning department can 
administer that grant.   Fletcher said it could not, as he took that project from Mike Inman 
in that department because the project was floundering around not going anywhere.  He 
said he is okay with the Commission giving that effort to Inman if it feels he can do the 
work.   
 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 11 of 18 



Taylor said Inman will be administering parks and recreation efforts.  Durgan said the 
Commission determined parks and recreation is more of a planning and development 
function.  Fletcher said the Commission is loading Inman with a lot of work that he has 
never done before.  Fletcher said the Commission needs to be cognizant Inman is 
enthusiastic about and interested in taking on work, but he thinks the Commission has 
given him way too much work to realistically do.  Taylor said the Commission is looking 
for a balance, and if work is overloaded it may be transferred.  Taylor said he will ask 
Inman about the RTCA grant and whether he is confident he can take it on.  Fletcher said 
Fort Parker will fall to Inman if he is in charge of Parks and Recreation, but Fletcher can 
brief him on that effort if requested. 
 
Durgan asked the status of the RTCA grant and how it should be handled to ensure 
commitments are met.  Durgan said the same goes for a Resource Area Committee 
(RAC) grant project.  Fletcher said he is intimately involved in the RAC grant.   
 
Malone said he thinks the Commission should meet regularly with the planning and 
community development departments for project and department status updates.  Fletcher 
said he thinks the Commission should schedule public, bi-weekly or as-needed special 
projects meetings. 
 
Fletcher said the county has a CDBG-ED-CIP grant associated with a countywide 
economic development Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), which needs to be completed.  
He said he is trying to find ways to spend the county’s share of grant funds, which is 
$14,000.  He said the funds can be spent on any effort associated with a county CIP 
program.   
 
Fletcher said the county should be looking at the growth policy chapter by chapter, as 
each chapter requires various levels of expertise, some of which is planning and some of 
which Fletcher specializes in.  He said rather than assigning the growth policy project to 
one person, it should be assigned to the appropriate person of expertise.  He said the 
planning board will determine what is in the policy, but Inman and Fletcher will have to 
share in the writing of the policy.  Taylor said he and Durgan will attend the October 20 
planning board meeting to discuss where the Commission is going with the growth policy 
and to take member input, as well as discuss planning board member expectations and 
how members best think they can accomplish them.  Taylor said the meeting will help the 
Commission get an idea and direction of where it is going with the growth policy.  
Fletcher said involving too many people in conversations on efforts results in taking one 
step forward and two steps back.  He said the feeling at present is to take individual 
chapters of the growth policy to present them to the public instead of presenting the entire 
document.   
 
Taylor asked if the October 20 planning board meeting will have an agenda item to 
provide the Commission with advice on a donut zoning issue.  Fletcher said the issue is a 
simple planning issue, but he will comment on whatever the Commission asks.   
 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 12 of 18 



Fletcher reiterated he thinks it is very important for the Commission to consider whether 
it has overloaded Inman with work tasks.  He said update meetings will enable the 
Commission to cut through all the talk and identify what projects are in trouble and need 
reallocation of resources.  Taylor said such is why he thinks it is necessary to have 
regularly scheduled department update meetings. 
 
Citizen Chuck Donovan asked about the status of donut area zoning.  Fletcher said the 
donut area has a building code the county has never paid attention to or enforced.  
 
@2:22 p.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  The 
meeting adjourned. 
 
October 13, 2011 
Daily Correspondence/Agenda and Briefing on Current County Projects 
 
@8:35:18 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Raea Morris, administrative assistant; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public 
comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo email re. October 14 SWB subcommittee meeting 
• Memo email re. Rock Creek Road maintenance agreement 
• Memo document re. DOWL HKM landfill monitoring results 
• Memo document re. Cooke City grooming contract 
• Memo email re. Rural Addressing data package 
• Memo email re. Safety and LEPC meeting agendas 
• Memo email re. Cooke City emergency response center funding request 
• Memo email re. Planning Department schedule of work tasks  

 
@8:48:28 a.m., the meeting adjourned. 
 
October 13, 2011 
 
9:00 A.M. – Safety Meeting – Commission Chambers – Meeting minutes available in the DES 
Department 
 
October 13, 2011 
Signing of Agreement with Great West Engineering for Professional Services on Main 
Boulder Road Project 
 
@9:38:17 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 13 of 18 



Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Lani Hartung, finance; and Minutes Clerk 
John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign an agreement with Great West Engineering for 
professional services on a Main Boulder Road project. 
 
Commissioner Malone moved to sign the agreement with Great West Engineering for 
professional services on the Main Boulder Road project.  Commissioner Durgan 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@9:42:27 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 13, 2011 
Discussion of Combining Shields Valley and Paradise Valley TV Boards 
 
@10:01:41 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Raea Morris, administrative assistant; 
Genevieve Essig, Robert Queen and Billie Kay Harms, TV Board; and Minutes Clerk 
John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider combining the Shields Valley and Paradise 
Valley TV Boards. 
 
Civil Deputy County Attorney Shannan Piccolo said the TV Boards and Commission 
need to waive conflict of interest with the County Attorney’s Office representing both 
entities.  Piccolo said she suggests the boards hire their own attorneys if they do not wish 
to waive the conflict of interest issue.  She said she requests the boards make a motion to 
waive the conflict of interest if they wish to do so. 
 
Commissioner Malone moved to waive conflict of interest issues with the County 
Attorney’s Office representing and conducting research for both the TV Districts and 
Park County.  Commissioner Durgan seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@10:22:36 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 13, 2011 
 
10:00 A.M. – Local Emergency Planning Committee – Community Room 
 
 
 
 
 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 14 of 18 



October 13, 2011 
Signing of the Missouri River Drug Task Force Agreement 
 
@10:33:40 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Scott Hamilton, undersheriff; Raea Morris, administrative assistant; and Minutes Clerk 
John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign a Missouri River Drug Task Force (MRDTF) 
agreement. 
 
Undersheriff Scott Hamilton said the overseer of MRDTF said the Montana Crime 
Control may have considerably cut funding to the MRDTF program to $24,800, but he 
has not received an email on the topic.  Hamilton said he would like to research the issue 
before the Commission signs the agreement.  
 
Commissioner Malone moved to not sign the agreement until more information is 
received.  Commissioner Durgan seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@10:35:20 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 13, 2011 
Consider Decision on Gardiner Roll-Off Fees and Roll-Off Disposal of Trail Creek and 
Chico Sites with the City of Livingston 
 
@11:01:38 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Richard Wright, refuse; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider a decision on Gardiner roll-off fees and roll-off 
disposal of Trail Creek and Chico green box roll offs with the city of Livingston. 
 
Wright said he suggests the county model a refuse fee sign at the Gardiner green box site 
after Stillwater County or city of Livingston signs.  Wright said he directed the green box 
attendant at the Gardiner site to assess fees to loads of refuse based on load size and 
refuse type.  He said such was protocol in the past and fees need to be publicized in 
writing on a sign in the yard to assist citizens with understanding prices.  He said a 
problem is some citizens in Gardiner think the green box site is their landfill and take 
landfill refuse to that site.  Wright said he will provide the Commission with verbiage for 
the green box site signs for review. 
 
In other discussion, Wright said he needs to know what the Commission wants to do with 
a trial effort of taking Trail Creek and Chico green box site roll-off refuse to the city of 
Livingston on a trial basis.  He said the trial effort has cost his budget nearly $8,000 to 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 15 of 18 



date.  The Commission asked Wright to submit bills, costs and expenditures from the trial 
effort for the Commission to review and make a decision on whether to stop the trial. 
 
@11:33:02 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 13, 2011 
 
12:00 P.M. – Critical Incident Stress Management – East Room 
 
October 14, 2011 
Daily Correspondence/Agenda and Briefing on Current County Projects 
 
@8:35:48 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were 
Raea Morris, administrative assistant; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public 
comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo email re. settlement agreement for Rakela Eagles Bluff v. Park County 
• Memo document re. October 20 Planning Board agenda 
• Memo email re. Fleshman Creek Project ad invoice 
• Memo document re. Oct 12 Community Development Department responsibilities 
• Memo email re. planning and community development department responsibitlies 
• Memo email re. bison EIS meeting 
• Memo document re. department head meeting agenda  

 
Commissioner Durgan reported on an October 13 meeting with Montana FWP, citizens 
and legal counsel on a Peterson Creek culvert issue.  
 
@8:55:38 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
October 14, 2011 
Solid Waste Board Subcommittee 
  
@9:02:06 a.m., Chairman Taylor called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Malone and Taylor were present.  Also present were Solid 
Waste Board (SWB) members Allan Carter, Bob Currie and Dennis Dodge.  Also present 
were Barbara Woodbury, environmental health; Wes Venteicher, Livingston Enterprise; 
Courtney Lawellin, PCCC attorney; and John Mueller, minutes clerk.  No public 
comment made. 
 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 16 of 18 



Bob Currie said the objective of the meeting is to give the full Solid Waste Board (SWB) 
board an update on October 21 about a county refuse master plan, map and types of 
refuse that can be dumped at county green box/compactor sites.  
 
Courtney Lawellin, Park County Concerned Citizens (PCCC) attorney, asked why the 
county would have the city of Livingston accept its refuse for $53 per ton and continue to 
pay the cost of collection.  There was discussion about the county showing the costs to 
citizens from fines by landfills and how savings can result from having manned green 
box sites.  
 
Dennis Dodge asked the county’s financial situation with installing green box compactor 
sites and whether one site will be installed every number of years or all at once.  
Commissioner Malone said a proposed Gardiner green box compactor site will cost 
$350,000 while a new roll off dump truck costs $250,000.  He said a ten-year master plan 
could plan for installation of a compactor site every three years.  Malone said his goal 
would be to attempt to purchase all sites with cash, and the county should not go deep in 
debt by purchasing too many sites at one time.  He said public buy-in is important in the 
process of adding more county compactor sites in the future and cost savings help with 
intent when borrowing funds for capital improvements.  Dodge asked if special interest 
groups could help finance sites.  Malone said he does not like the idea of purchasing 
things that do not pay for themselves.  Taylor said taking funds from other groups will 
involve those groups in operations, which can complicate matters. 
 
Lawellin said she would like to know how many households Columbus compactor sites 
serve; how many addresses exist per compactor and that county’s total refuse budget and 
the cost to run each compactor.  The board asked to have county landfill, transfer station, 
collections and disposal costs relative to refuse operations for review at its October 21 
meeting.  
 
Taylor provided the subcommittee with legal opinions from the civil deputy county 
attorney regarding county contracts with disposal entities and how public comment will 
be accepted for a Bell and Associates solid waste report.  Malone said he thinks the 
subcommittee should provide either an oral or written report of brainstorming sessions to 
the whole SWB.   
 
There was discussion about sitting SWB members serving as members of the Park 
County Concerned Citizens and the PCCC attorney being paid by the PCCC to attend 
SWB meetings.  
 
@11:00:51 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Taylor seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 

Week of 10/10/11 Page 17 of 18 



Week of 10/10/11 Page 18 of 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Randy Taylor, R.S. 
Chairman, Park County Commission  
Park County, Montana 
 
 
 
Denise Nelson 
Clerk & Recorder 
Park County, Montana 


